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Profile

Hogy Medical has dedicated itself to developing close and excellent relationships with medical professionals for more 
than half a century since its inception in 1961. At the same time, the Company has strived to develop and steadily sup-
ply products that contribute to the safety of patients and medical staff and the management reform of medical institu-
tions. Hogy Medical is committed to “fostering medical progress and promoting the health and happiness of people 
through its business activities, thus contributing to social prosperity.” Through its campaign to prevent the spread of 
in-hospital infections, the Company places top priority on assuring the safety of patients and medical facility staff. We 
also make and sell a variety of products and systems that enable medical institutions to enhance their streamlining and 
labor-saving efforts.

Throughout the Company’s history the leading products have been constantly evolving and developing, from the 
Mekkin Bag which realized complete sterilization of medical equipment to the non-woven fabric medical products 
which contributed to prevention of in-hospital infections, surgical-use kit products that contributed to greater efficiency 
of management in hospitals and Opera Master which is a comprehensive system covering products, logistics and infor-
mation management. In providing our leading products, namely surgery kit products which contain surgical supplies for 
a required quantity in accordance with each type of surgical operation and inspections, etc., Opera Master which is a 
total service system aimed at helping medical institutions to improve profits, secure safety and raise operating efficien-
cy based on surgery kit products, logistics and information management and the Surgery Management System, a new 
service that extends the functions of the Opera Master system components, the Company presents proposals that should 
lead to enhanced efficiency and improved waste management of medical facilities along with the products.

As its strengths, the Company responds meticulously to the voice of people on the medical front lines by directly 
conducting proposal-based marketing to medical institutions, and provides comprehensive support through developing 
and supplying various products that contribute to streamlining of management of facilities and the safety of patients and 
medical staff. The Company aims to support the efficient management of operating rooms by assessing and analyzing 
the management conditions at healthcare facilities as well as always understanding accurately the most recent needs of 
customers and reflecting those needs in the improvement of products. Our products, manufactured in plants that imple-
ment extensive safety measures, ensure the safety of patients and healthcare staff.

T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

Contributing to Medical Safety and Management 
Reform of Medical Institutions as a Leading Provider 
of Medical Products, Hogy Medical offers 
comprehensive support as its strengths.
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Hogy Medical develops and provides products aimed at streamlining operations at healthcare facilities 
and securing safety of patients and healthcare staff. The Company directly makes proposals to health-
care facilities and elaborately responds to the needs of people at the frontlines of healthcare, reflecting 
the needs of customers in the improvement of products. Simultaneously, we assess and analyze the 
management conditions at healthcare facilities in order to support the efficient management of operat-
ing rooms. Moreover, we implement extensive safety measures at our plants so that products manufac-
tured there ensure the safety of patients and healthcare staff.

Since its inception, Hogy Medical has been involved in the development and supply of 
products that help streamline management of medical institutions and secure safety of 
patients and medical staff. In 1964, the Company developed and launched Mekkin Bag 
as the first step among endeavors to prevent in-hospital infections. The product has been 
widely accepted, eventually becoming a highly recognized name among sterilization 
pouch products, and is used by many medical institutions. Our surgical-use non-woven 
fabrics that adopt disposable non-woven fabrics with high protective properties as clothing 
used in surgeries have contributed to protecting medical staff from infections by control-
ling contact with the blood of patients. Looking ahead, Hogy Medical will continue to 
introduce products aimed to enhance medical safety, taking advantage of the know-how it 
has fostered since inception.

Offering a Variety of Products to Firmly Back 
Up Ideal Hospital Management

Medical Safety

Mekkin Bag

P.12

Medical Non-Woven 
Products

Kit Products for 
Surgery Applications

Administration 
divisions

Hogy Medical’s Opera Master and the Surgery 
Management System increase the efficiency of surgery 
operations, helping to improve hospital management

Hospital

Business Domain

Operating 
rooms

Material 
rooms

Our thoroughly sterilized non-woven products and kit 
products not only ensure safety but also significantly short-
en preparation time for surgeries.

A broad range of products offered by Hogy Medical ensure 
safe and reliable sterilization.

P.12 P.13



Minimally 
Invasive Treatment

Hogy Medical launched Opera Master in April 2004. Opera Master is a system to support 
medical facilities in a specific manner by providing a mechanism of surgery management 
in which a variety of information is promptly and accurately collected in and around sur-
gery rooms, and by offering products that help simplify operations. In 2012, the Company 
introduced Surgery Management System, a new system that features enhanced func-
tions of the existing models and additional functions tailored to comments and requests 
received from long-term customers. The new system contributes to increasing the opera-
tional efficiency of operating rooms by automating operation management and improving 
analysis of historic records and data.

Hospital Management 
Support
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Minimally invasive treatment*, one of Hogy Medical’s development subjects, has such 
advantages as imposing little burden on patients and allowing for quicker recovery after 
surgeries. Because of these benefits, endoscopic surgeries, which are minimally invasive, 
have been adopted in surgical operations at a notably increasing pace, replacing lapa-
rotomies over recent years. The Hogy Group offers as a new product in this field that is 
expected to grow further going forward, the EMARO® Endoscope Holder, developed by 
RIVERFIELD Inc. which was established as a venture of Tokyo Institute of Technology 
and Tokyo Medical and Dental University with the support of the START project by the 
Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology.

*Minimally invasive treatment refers to treatment that 
minimizes as much as possible the burdens associated with 
surgeries, examinations, etc. on patients The treatment, which 
uses such apparatuses as endoscopes and catheters, makes 
incisions that are smaller than those in conventional treatments 
and leaves little burden on patients, thus having the advantage of 
allowing for quicker recovery.

Opera Master Surgery Management 
System

EMARO®

P.14 P.15

P.13



Financial Highlights (Consolidated)
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Income Statement Data 

   Net sales

   Operating income

   Pro�t before income taxes

   Pro�t attributable to owners of parent

Balance Sheet Data

   Common stock

   Additional paid-in capital

   Total net assets 

   Total liabilities and net assets

   Property, plant and equipment, net

Cash Flow Data 

   Net cash provided by operating activities

   Net cash used in investing activities

   Net cash (used in) provided by �nancing activities

   Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Per Share Data

   Pro�t attributable to owners of parent: 

     Basic

     Diluted

   Net assets

20162016 2015
(Millions of yen 

unless indicated otherwise) 

(Yen) (U.S. dollars) 

(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

Years ended March 31

Notes: (1) The U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from Japanese yen, for convenience only,   
                at the rate of ¥112.69 = U.S.$1.00, the rate of exchange on March 31, 2016.
           (2) This annual report states all �gures on a consolidated basis, except where otherwise noted.



Stability

Capital Expenditures and Related Data

Per Share Data
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Top Message
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In fiscal 2015 that ended in March 
2016, the Japanese economy saw var-
ious economic measures implemented 
by the government and additional 
monetary arrangements conducted by 
the Bank of Japan, among other events. 
Nevertheless, in the face of such factors 
as a slowdown in overseas economies, 
lower crude oil prices and unstable 

moves in the stock market since the 
beginning of 2016, the prospect of the 
economy remained uncertain. In the 
healthcare industry, healthcare reform 
is underway in which functional differ-
entiation is strengthened for medical 
institutions as an initiative to realize the 
future vision of healthcare and nursing 
care services for 2025 as described in 

Overview of Business Performance, Future Outlook and Mid- to Long-Term Strategies

Contributing to the Improvement of Medical Institution 
Management by Elaborately Addressing the Changing 
Healthcare Environment and Needs of the Medical Front 
Line as well as Continuing and Strengthening Further the 
“Opera Master Strategy.”

the government’s Integrated Reform 
of Social Security and Tax System. In 
accordance with this, companies in 
the medical equipment industry are 
required to make further progress in 
streamlining management in order to 
respond to the changing healthcare 
environment.

Under such an envi ronment , 
the Hogy Medical Group focused 
on expanding sales of Opera Master, 
which supports management improve-
ment of medical institutions, promot-
ing sales of kit products to contracted 
medical institutions, and developing 
and selling new products. For Opera 
Master, we endeavored on marketing 
activities to advanced acute care hos-
pitals and general acute care hospitals, 
which resulted in steady conclusion 
of new contracts totaling 40 cases. On 
the other hand, there were ten cases of 
contract cancellations, making the total 
number of contracts to 272.

Sales of our kit products increased 
mainly for Opera Master, promoted 
by our efforts to enhance sales man-
agement to newly contracted medical 
institutions. Sales of non-woven fabric 
products decreased, however, partly 
because of the impact of taking meas-
ures to maintain profits against rising 
cost of sales due to foreign exchange 
and other external factors. In terms 
of new products, we delivered the 
Surgery Management System, which 
contributes to enhanced efficiency of 
surgery room operations as well as the 
management reform of medical institu-
tions, to three facilities. Moreover, the 
Company sold EMARO® Endoscope 
Holder, which realizes a high level of 
safety and excellent operability, to two 
facilities. Consequently, sales of new 
products increased year-on-year. 



Increase of Sales of Major Products in Fiscal 2015 (ended March 2016)

Kit

Non-woven fabrics

Mekkin Bag

Other non-woven 
fabrics

Other
products

New products

Subsidiaries
and other sales

0 400200-200-400 800600 1000 1200 1400

1,381
Opera Master

Regular 
kit

1,238 143

-283

29

-34

-28

285

-16

Kit total

Fiscal 2015 Sales Growth
1,334 million yen

(Unit: Millions of yen, rounded down) 
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Aside from these efforts , the 
Company has worked to review the 
specifications and sale methods of 
Premium Kit, a new offering of kit 
products in pursuit of the maximum 
advantages for customers, in prepa-
ration for starting its test operations. 
Moreover, we have been engaged in 
constructing a plant for new kit prod-
ucts as an important production facility 
that is the key to the Company’s growth 
going forward. Construction of its 
buildings was completed in the second 
quarter of the fiscal year under review, 
and machineries and facilities are being 
installed in the buildings at present.

As a result of these endeavors, 
consolidated net sales for the fiscal year 
increased 3.8% year-on-year to ¥36,568 
million. Of this, sales of kit products 
amounted to ¥20,259 million (up 7.3% 
from the previous year), including 
Opera Master-related sales of ¥13,721 
(up 9.9%), while sales of non-woven 
fabric products decreased 2.8% to 
¥9,728 million yen. As for the cost of 
sales, the impact of foreign exchang-
es and an increase in depreciation 
expenses caused the cost of sales ratio 
to rise year-on-year. However, sales 
and general administrative expenses 
were reduced from the previous fiscal 

year as we endeavored to use expendi-
tures efficiently. As a result, operating 
income increased 3.3% year-on-year to 
¥8,784 million. Ordinary income came 
to ¥8,924 million, up 1.8%, given the 
impact associated with fluctuations 
in exchange for loans to subsidiaries 
denominated in foreign currencies, 
among other factors. Profit attributable 
to owners of parent stood at ¥5,910 
million, a year-on-year increase of 
4.4%.

With the healthcare system reform 
underway, fiscal 2016 revision of med-
ical service fees has been conducted. 
The revision has employed measures 

to divide and coordinate the functions 
of hospital beds, such as reviews made 
to the “severity and level of need for 
nursing care.” As such, we forecast that 
hospitals will be polarized even further. 
In order to respond to the changing 
healthcare environment in the future, 
the Hogy Medical Group has intro-
duced a Product System in the fields of 
minimally invasive treatment, medical 
safety, hospital management systems 
and home nursing care/preventative 
medicine, and reinforced support to our 
marketing forces.

For kit products, we will work to 
make Premium Kit better known and 
start its test operations, in an effort to 

further enhance customer satisfaction 
and reinforce marketing activities. 
We will also continue reinforcing 
sales management of kit products for 
contracted medical institutions as we 
continuously aim to expedite sales. As 
for new products, we will endeavor to 
enhance business performance by set-
ting “model hospitals” for such prod-
ucts as Surgery Management System, 
EMARO® Endoscope Holder and IC 
TRACER as well as by strengthening 
sales of these products. With regard to 
the new kit products plant, we expect 
an increase in depreciation expenses 
associated with the capital investment. 
However, the new plant will allow us 

to differentiate ourselves from com-
petitors as it will serve as a production 
facility to provide a stable supply of 
safer products. As such, we believe 
this will make significant contributions 
to the sales and profit of the Hogy 
Medical Group in the future. We plan to 
start operation of the new kit products 
plant in April 2017 by when interior 
installation of machinery will be com-
pleted.

June 2016

Jun-ichi Hoki  
President & CEO
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Minimally invasive treatment, one of our development sub-
jects, is a treatment that eliminates as much as possible the 
burden associated with surgeries and examinations, etc. on 
patients. Surgical operations that use endoscopes and catheters, 
conducted as minimally invasive treatment, have the advan-
tage of allowing quicker recovery after surgeries. Because 
of this, endoscopic surgeries have been adopted in opera-
tions over recent years at a notably increasing pace, replacing 
laparotomies. As a new product in this field, we launched the 
EMARO® Endoscope Holder, developed by RIVERFIELD 
Inc., in August 2015.

EMARO® Endoscope Holder is a system with which the 
surgeon can operate the endoscopic camera without use of both 
hands, as the gyro sensor attached to the head of the surgeon 
detects movement. With this, the surgeon can move the endo-
scopic camera as they desire without the need to issue verbal 
instructions to the camera assistant and can conduct surgery 
with both hands free. Moreover, the surgeon can not only move 
the endoscopic camera vertically and horizontally but also 
rotate it or move it back and forth. The product can also be 
applied to the endoscopes produced by any manufacturer. We 

have determined that it is particularly important to have medi-
cal institutions understand the EMARO® Endoscope Holder 
deeply before using it. Thus, we let medical institutions trial 
the product clinically and evaluate it before we sell it to them.

Responding to the Changing Healthcare Environment and Reinforcing the System to 
Support Marketing through the “Product Team System”

Selling EMARO® Endoscope Holder that Demonstrates Excellence in Safety and 
Operability for Minimally Invasive Treatment

Since its inception, the Company has emphasized product life 
cycles, and focused on developing products that are useful to 
the medical front line. In doing so, we positioned “develop-
ment of next mainstay products,” or fostering of key products 
that will lead the next stage of growth and placing them on a 
track to mature before current-growth stage mainstay products, 
as one of the priority measures.

The healthcare reform initiatives are significantly chang-
ing the current healthcare environment, and we anticipate 
that medical institutions will further advance their efforts for 

management reforms, including promotion of functional differ-
entiation and organizational elimination and consolidation. In 
particular, in order to adjust ourselves to the changing health-
care environment as exemplified by Japan’s aging society, 
decrease of population and breakthroughs in medical technolo-
gies, we have introduced a “product team system” to develop 
new products, provide services and cultivate the market needs 
for the 5 selected fields of Opera Master, hospital management 
system, minimally invasive treatment, medical safety and home 
nursing care/preventative medicine. Each product team aims to 
promote the Company’s priority measures and achieve further 
improvement in business performances by supporting the sales 
department in staff training, planning of sales strategy and 
sales management.

Please tell us about the Product Team 
System and how it is linked with the sales 
department.

Will you please explain the background of 
development, features and the present status 
of EMARO® Endoscope Holder?

Q1

Q2

Top Message Overview of Business Performance, Future Outlook and Mid- to Long-Term Strategies
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Reducing Costs for Operating Surgery Rooms and Enhancing Productivity with the 
“Premium Kit,” Our New Format Product

Construction of the New Kit Products Plant Steadily Underway

The new kit products plant will produce Premium Kit products, 
our newly formatted kit products offering. Conventional kit 
products had a format in which the ingredients were covered 
by non-woven fabrics. In contrast, the format has been changed 
so that the new product units combine medical supplies used 
for surgeries in a single package. With these, we aim to devel-
op products that are even more user friendly and safer, such as 
by enabling customers to unseal the products safely and check 
the contents without unsealing them while the supplies are 
packaged dispersedly in accordance with the surgery proce-
dures. Manufactured in an automated production line, the new 
format products realize “all-in-one” kit offerings that package 
more supplies than before. By adopting the new format, the 
Premium Kit products offer different package combinations of 
medical supplies according to surgery procedures, so that the 
supplies can be taken out in accordance with specific surgery 
procedures. This characterizes the new products.

Looking at the future healthcare environment, it is antici-

pated that acute care hospitals will be increasingly integrated 
toward the future vision of healthcare and nursing care services 
for 2025 as described in the government’s Integrated Reform 
of Social Security and Tax System initiative, and the number 
of surgeries conducted in a single hospital will increase. As 
such, acute care hospitals are required to manage operating 
rooms more efficiently. Moreover, with the working popula-
tion forecasted to decrease due to the aging of society, medical 
institutions will be forced to manage their operations in an 
environment of limited workforce supply. In order to respond 
to such a changing healthcare environment, the Premium Kit 
products combine medical supplies used for surgeries into a 
single kit, making it possible to standardize the preparation 
processes for surgery and reduce the preparation work. What 
is more, the Premium Kit products have the advantage of not 
only improving work efficiency and safety by changing the 
format of the kits, but also in reducing work for inventory con-
trol and receipts and payments of goods, allowing for secure 
channels in appropriate inventory control. Going forward, we 
plan to conduct test operations for clinical use so that medical 
institutions can compare the Premium Kit products with the 
conventional kit products.

In implementing corporate management, the Hogy Medical 
Group is always seeking to increase the ratio of direct work. 
To do so, while the Company’s indirect, back office depart-
ments operate with as few employees as possible, its produc-
tion departments have pursued automation to the best possible 
extent and set out facilities and systems to enable production 
to be conducted with a small number of workers. Considering 
the future growth of the Hogy Medical Group, the construc-
tion of the new kit products plant is in particular strategically 
important. In this regard, we have demonstrated two concepts: 
“decreasing costs with improved productivity” and “producing 
products with high added value.” Specifically, the Company 
works to realize cost reductions in the future with greater effi-
ciency realized by automation, and increase production volume 
by additional production lines. We will also keep the capacity 
utilization rate high by subdividing the facilities to be added. 
Moreover, we will simultaneously pursue productivity and 
safety through such measures as saving labor of indirect work-
ers through a production management system and promoting 
in-house production of materials. Through these endeavors, the 
Company will aim for long-term growth as well as pursue what 
should be the final forms of the kit products.

The construction of the new kit products plant is smooth-
ly underway. With the building completed in August 2015, 
we started installation of production facilities. Depreciation 
expenses to record of the new plant are projected to be 815 
million yen for the 55th fiscal year ending March 2017 and 
2,170 million for the 56th fiscal year. We believe that the new 
plant should greatly contribute to the sales and profits of the 
Hogy Medical Group going forward, as it allows us to differ-
entiate ourselves from competitors by stably supplying safer 
products. Furthermore, operation of the new kit production 
plant is scheduled for April 2017, by when interior installation 
of machinery will be completed.

Can you explain what the differences are 
between the Premium Kit products and your 
conventional kit products?

What about the productivity of the new kit 
products plant, and how is construction 
progressing?

Q4

Q3

Progress on the new factory

New factory
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P.T. Hogy Indonesia, our subsidiary in Indonesia, has estab-
lished itself as one of the world’s leading plants for processing 
non-woven fabric medical products. The subsidiary mainly 
conducts operations that require human labor, such as sew-
ing with sewing machines. In Indonesia, labor costs are rising 

each year and are forecasted to stay on an upward trend in the 
future. Thus, it has become indispensable to save labor and 
promote automation at the plant. Accordingly, we have focused 
on improving the productivity of the local plant by reviewing 
production processes and dispatching from Japan to Indonesia 
engineers engaged in production of non-woven fabric products, 
among other measures. Looking ahead, we will make further 
improvements and promote automation so that the plant will 
contribute to the profits of the Hogy Medical Group.

In terms of sales of non-woven fabric products, we recog-
nize Indonesia as a promising area. With a large population and 
a high economic growth rate, the country has great potential of 
becoming a medical equipment market in the future. P.T. Hogy 
Medical Sales Indonesia, our sales subsidiary in Indonesia, 
conducts sales of non-woven fabric products. We will reinforce 
sales within the country going forward while looking for the 
sales methods that meet the needs of local hospitals.

Our basic policy with respect to profit distribution is to focus 
on our dividend policy and return profits to our sharehold-
ers proactively and on a continual basis, always taking into 
account our corporate motto of “Ensuring harmonious coex-
istence with customers, shareholders, employees and corpo-
rations” that we have fostered since inception. Moreover, to 
ensure that the fruits of our performance are swiftly returned to 
shareholders, we conduct payment of quarterly dividends.

For fiscal 2015, we paid quarterly dividends of ¥29 for 
each quarter (in contrast to ¥28 in each of the quarters in the 
previous fiscal year) for total annual dividends of ¥116 (in 
contrast to ¥112 in the previous fiscal year). The consolidated 
performance forecasts for fiscal 2016 ending March 31, 2017 
are net sales of ¥38,400 million (up 5.0%), operating income 
of ¥7,180 million (down 18.3%), ordinary income of ¥7,280 
million (down 18.4%) and net income of ¥5,000 million (down 
15.4%), all on a year-on-year basis. For fiscal 2016, we plan 
to pay quarterly dividends of ¥30 for each quarter and for total 
annual dividends of ¥120, a new record high.

We strive for environmental preservation activities as our CSR 
activities. Since 2009, we have undertaken the “Eco Project for 
the Firefly,” which aims to restore deserted farm land as paddy 
fields, in collaboration with Asaza Fund, an NPO, and the 
Ushiku city government, endeavoring to restore wetlands called 
“yatsuda” (paddy fields on valley floor). Together with the 
neighboring woodlands, the yatsuda assumes an important role 
in purifying water as the source of water for the Ushiku-numa 
pond. Even now, we can find a variety of creatures including 
killifish and frogs there. However, as the yatsuda is located in 
an area surrounded by low hills, a large part of it has been left 
deserted due to the farming costs and the impact reduced paddy 
acreage. Given the situation, we started the project in which we 
borrow the deserted farm land (1.7 hectares) neighboring our 

Tsukuba Factory located in Ushiku City from the city govern-
ment, grow pesticide-free rice and restore the former paddy 
landscape. The NPO provides guidance for supplying water 
through a channel and cultivating rice, and the our employees 
and their families are participate by providing labor. By doing 
so, we work to interact with the local community through the 
agricultural experience of planting and harvesting rice, as well 
as aim to restore and preserve the ecosystem.

Let us know in detail the status of production 
of non-woven fabric products in Indonesia 
and local sales of the products.

Please explain your dividend policy and the 
dividend status?

Please tell us about the current status of 
Hogy Medical’s CSR activities.

Q5

Q6

Q7

Endeavoring to Improve Productivity and Sales in Indonesia

Another Record High Dividend Planned for the Next Fiscal Year

CSR Activities of the Company
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The healthcare environment is in the midst of changes, given 
the healthcare reforms underway. Acute care hospitals, the 
main customers of the Hogy Medical Group, are required to 
conduct more surgeries than before in accordance with the 
progress in functional differentiation toward realizing the 
vision of healthcare and nursing care services for 2025 as 
described in the government’s Integrated Reform of Social 
Security and Tax System initiative. Under such a situation, 
because of the problem of securing human resources and a 
market environment where medical costs are to be reduced, 
efficient management of hospitals such as preparing an envi-
ronment to reduce operational burdens even with few person-
nel has become essential. Focusing attention on such a situa-
tion, we will continue and reinforce our proposals on the Opera 
Master strategy for advanced acute care hospitals and general 
acute care hospitals that are expected to see a concentration 
of patients in the future. Hogy Medical will realize efficient 
management of surgeries and operational improvements at hos-
pitals by integrating and utilizing surgery information through 
Opera Master so that we can contribute to medical institution 

management reform.
With Opera Master, delays in initializing transactions was 

a pending issue for us to solve, as it took a long time for the 
contracting hospitals to actually place orders of kit products. 
This was due to the time required for decision-making by the 
contracting medical institutions and the time we had to spend 
for designing and verifying the kit products, among other fac-
tors. Addressing this issue, we have successfully conducted 
quick transactions by setting up a startup support team that 
supports design of kit products. Going forward, we will focus 
on starting up transactions as early as possible with medical 
institutions with which we have concluded contracts.  

The system and concept of Opera Master evolves to meet 
the needs of the medical frontline. We are selling the Surgery 
Management System, which have expanded the functions of 
the systems section of Opera Master, accommodating the com-
ments and requests from our long-term customers. By utiliz-
ing the Surgery Management System, it is possible to analyze 
the performance management data of operating rooms more 
swiftly and in greater detail. The system automates operation 
management and helps improve the management efficiency of 
operating rooms. For Opera Master, we will continue and rein-
force its development to further develop it as a product offering 
high added value to our customers.

Finally, could you tell us the future outlook 
and the medium- to long-term strategies of 
the Company?Q8

Change in Sales of Opera Master

FY 2004

FY 2005

FY 2006

FY 2007

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

FY 2012

FY 2013

FY 2014

FY 2015

140120100806040200

(Unit: Hundred millions of yen, rounded down)

40 contracts, 10 cancellations (total of 272 contracts)
13.72 billion yen (total) (109.9% increase from the previous �scal year)

Future Outlook and Medium- to Long-Term Strategies
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Packaging materials for sterilization are required to feature contradicting characteris-

tics of being open to the sterilizing steam or gas yet being able to keep the contents of 

the pouch sterile for long periods of time. To create the optimum materials that meet 

these requirements, Hogy Medical developed sterilization paper with a unique micro-

structure. In 1964, when the concept of sterilization and disinfection still persisted in 

the medical front lines, the Company developed Mekkin Bag as the first step toward 

prevention of in-hospital infections. Developed with the aim of producing products that 

should contribute to the prevention of in-

hospital infections, Mekkin Bag attracted a 

quickly-expanding demand due to its high 

sterilization characteristics and convenience 

of use. The product has been accepted 

widely to become a highly recognized name 

among sterilization storage packages. Even 

now, Mekkin Bag continues its evolution so 

that it can accommodate many developing 

sterilization methods

As the top manufacturer of non-woven fabric medical products, Hogy Medical has inte-

grated high-quality materials and processing technologies as well as its long-standing 
know-how to create products that feature a weight that is light enough to support sur-
gery without any impediment, durable over a period of time, feature proper aeration 

and have a high level of protective properties, all in a higher dimension. Since launch-

ing the non-woven fabric products in 1972, the Company has also worked to improve 

and enhance products in order to contribute to preventing infections in medical set-

tings. In particular, our surgical gowns, drapes and caps demonstrate a high protective 

performance and durability, helping to prevent in-

hospital infections. With our own production line, 

we can also supply customized non-woven fabric 

products to meet the needs of medical institutions. 
In recent years, Hogy has supplied high-quality and 

low-priced products to match contemporary needs, 

offering a wide variety of non-woven fabric prod-
ucts including Tigalyer. With these products, the 

Company provides greater safety and functionality 

to the medical front lines. For these achievements, 

Hogy Medical is supported by a wide range of cli-

ents and deeply trusted by surgeon staff.

Mekkin Bag Creates and Leads the History of 
Hogy Medical

Highly Trusted by People in Surgery Rooms, Our Medical Non-Woven Fabrics Address 
More Advanced Medical Requirements

Mekkin BagMedical 
Safety

Medical Non-Woven ProductsMedical 
Safety
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With our kit products, the medical procedure can be started once the kit pouch is opened, and preparation labor and time can be reduced 

significantly. This allows medical institutions to increase the number of operations and clinical tests they undertake. Since the start of their 

sales, the kit products, which contain necessary quantities of surgical supplies relevant to each type of surgical operation, clinical tests 

and other purposes, have gathered attention not only in terms of reduction in workloads but also risk management, including prevention 

of human errors and spread of in-hospital infections. In particular, the “Full Kit” products, an achievement of our pursuit of safety and 

rationality, provide a full set of surgical supplies used in operating rooms. High-function 

hospitals undertaking a particularly large number of surgical operations have increas-

ingly adopted our kit products, as the kit products offer great advantages that contribute to 

improvement of revenues of medical institutions.

In the field of minimally-invasive treatments that pose limited burdens on patients and 

allow for quicker post-operation recoveries, endoscopic surgeries have required a cam-

era assistant to operate the endoscope. Accordingly, in addition to the need for at least 2 
persons, a smooth mutual understanding between the surgeon and the assistant is neces-

sary. With the gyro sensor attached on the surgeon’s head to detect the movements of the 

head, EMARO® is an innovative system that allows the 
surgeon to operate the endoscopic camera without use of 

both hands, and simultaneously achieves a high level of 

safety and excellent operability. The surgeon can move 

the endoscope to desired angles, and can conduct surger-
ies without a camera assistant. Moreover, the surgeon 

can move the endoscopic camera not only vertically and 

horizontally but also rotate it and move it back and forth. 

The product also can be mounted to endoscopes pro-

duced by any manufacturer.

Addressing the Needs of Each Medical Facility, Kit Products are Increasingly Introduced to 
High-Function Hospitals that Perform Many Surgeries

EMARO® Endoscope Holder Realizes a High Level of 
Safety and Excellent Operability, and Contributes to 
Minimally-Invasive Treatment

Patient 
entry

Patient 
exit

Intravenous 
line

connections
Anesthesia

Disinfection and
application of 
surgical drapes

First incision Final closure 
of incision

Full Kit

Surgery speciality kits

Surgery preparatory kits

Anesthesia and disinfection kits

Non-woven fabric products

Kit Products for Surgery ApplicationsMedical 
Safety

EMARO®Minimally-Invasive 
Treatment

Gyro sensor
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Increase the efficiency of surgery 
room operations
Opera Master has built a four step cycled sustain-
able support system for improvement of hospi-
tal management: “PLAN” to help plan business 
improvement; “DO” to measure efficiency in kit 
products and production in actual working hours; 
“CHECK” to manage business information and 
its automatic accumulation; “ACTION” for staff 
to collect information and propose new measures 
for improvement.

Full Kit

Just i
n T

im
e

Inform
ation M

anagement System

PLAN
Planning

DO
Implementation 

and action

ACTION
Management review 

and improvement

CHECK
Inspection and 

evaluation

b Low indirect administrative costs
b More effective materials control
b Sanitization using electron beam 
    sterilization
b Rigorous safety measures taken

Bene�ts of Full Kit products

b One-kit orders (minimum) accepted
b Alleviates inventory burden
b Backed by reliable logistics system

Logistics-related bene�ts
b Facilitates scheduling of surgeries
b Allows human resources to be
     allocated more appropriately
b Alleviates inventory burden
b Includes cost-control system

Information management system

Setting a goal and 
drawing a plan
Examine individual performance 
data to present the best business 
plan

Business ef�ciency 
improvement through tools
Provision of site improvement 
tool/plan tailored to equipment 
situation of each facility

Future proposal
Submission of analysis of 
current state of staff with 
expertise

Data collection and 
analysis
Real time comparison and 
analysis of automatically 
collected data

Full Kit

Just i
n T

im
e

Inform
ation M

anagement System

PLAN
Planning

DO
Implementation 

and action

ACTION
Management review 

and improvement

CHECK
Inspection and 

evaluation

b Low indirect administrative costs
b More effective materials control
b Sanitization using electron beam 
    sterilization
b Rigorous safety measures taken

Bene�ts of Full Kit products

b One-kit orders (minimum) accepted
b Alleviates inventory burden
b Backed by reliable logistics system

Logistics-related bene�ts
b Facilitates scheduling of surgeries
b Allows human resources to be
     allocated more appropriately
b Alleviates inventory burden
b Includes cost-control system

Information management system

Setting a goal and 
drawing a plan
Examine individual performance 
data to present the best business 
plan

Business ef�ciency 
improvement through tools
Provision of site improvement 
tool/plan tailored to equipment 
situation of each facility

Future proposal
Submission of analysis of 
current state of staff with 
expertise

Data collection and 
analysis
Real time comparison and 
analysis of automatically 
collected data

Opera Master
Hospital 
Management 
Support

Built on the three core elements of products, logistics and information manage-

ment, Opera Master, which the Company launched in April 2004, is a system to 

specifically support medical facilities through a mechanism of surgery management 

in which information is promptly and accurately collected in and around surgery 

rooms, and through products that help simplify operations. The full-kit products 

incorporated at the core of Opera Master match the respective types of doctors and 

surgeries at hospitals, and help to raise efficiency and save labor in medical facili-

ties while boosting the safety of surgical procedures. The products also contribute 

to increasing hospital operating efficiency by eliminating the need to control mate-

rials in single units. On the logistics side, the Company has established a system 

to deliver the products by the day preceding the date of surgical procedures. This 

helps alleviate inventory burdens of medical institutions. In terms of information, 

moreover, Opera Master provides information related to controlling costs in the 

operating room and other matters to facilitate complex cost accounting and allow 

expectations for enhanced operating room productivity.

Built on Three Core Elements of Products, Logistics, and Information Management, Opera 
Master Aims to Enhance Profits and Safety and Raise Operating Efficiency at Hospitals, 
Greatly Contributing to Heightening Efficiency of Hospital Management



Accumulation and analysis 
of the above data
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Time Management

Inventory Management

Cost Management

The Surgery Management System, a service offered by Hogy Medical since 2012, adds 

various data collection tools to the existing Opera Master. Using the data collected by 

the tools, the System provides a mechanism to comprehensively and accurately grasp the 

operational status of surgery room staff and the cost of the surgical procedure. Based on 

the accumulation and analysis of the above data, it also offers proposals that may increase 

the efficiency of surgery room operations. Notably characterized by the enhanced hard-

ware system and the function to analyze actual records collected by the system, the service 

aims to thoroughly reduce waste and irregularities for more comfortable surgery room 

operations. It also allows hospitals to operate surgery rooms while checking the status of 

revenues.

Surgery Management System, New Service by Opera 
Master, Realizes More Efficient Cost Management by 
Collecting Data on an Ongoing Basis and Reducing Work 
Burdens through Visualized Surgery Rooms

Surgery Management System
Hospital 
Management 
Support

Time management of surgery room operations by 
standardizing procedure plans and appropriately 
arranging staff shift schedules. Creates a system 
that enables anyone to prep for surgical procedures 
accurately, securely and quickly.

Reduces time and effort in inventory management 
with a system that accurately manages receipt 
and payment of materials. Prevents claim errors 
through collective management of purchases, 
usage and claims.

Collects data from each surgical procedure and 
thoroughly covers cost management. Analysis 
and proposed improvement directly connected to 
the improvement of management.

Operation procedure book

KitDigital picking system

Various analysis tools

ME Machine Management 
Function

RFID Tag

SPASER



Basic Approach

Overview of the Current Corporate Governance System

Other Special Matters Significantly Impacting Corporate Governance

Hogy Medical has established “focus on customers” and “focus 

on shareholders” as the basic policies of the Company and is 

aware that steadily realizing management targets and continu-

ously improving corporate value are important means for pro-

viding a return to shareholders. To achieve these requires quick 

In order to accelerate the decision-making process for the exe-

cution of business and to ensure corporate governance, Hogy 

Medical employs the Financial System Council’s study group’s 

model system of “electing outside directors and cooperating 

with the Board of Corporate Auditors, etc.” The major roles of 

the Board of Directors and the Board of Corporate Auditors are 

as follows. 

<Board of Directors>

Hogy Medical has a 7-member Board of Directors, two being 

outside directors, to make quick business decisions by manag-

ing using a small number of people. In addition, the Company 

introduced an executive officer system in June 1999 to clearly 

separate management decision making and operation audit-

ing, the inherent functions of the Board of Directors, from the 

operation execution function of the executive officers, etc., to 

Our subsidiary located in Indonesia has implemented policies 

tailored to its region from the beginning, and it has six direc-

tors consisting of three Japanese persons and three Indonesians. 

Financial data and other required materials are fully reported to 

the parent company, Hogy Medical, to ensure that audits can be 

decision-making and proper execution of operations while 

strengthening corporate governance by enhancing governance 

that improves management transparency.

create an organization that can respond rapidly to changes in 

the business environment.

<Board of Auditors>

Hogy Medical has a 3-member Board of Auditors, two being 

outside auditors, that audit the execution of the duties of the 

directors. The Board of Auditors attends all important meet-

ings, receives reports from directors and other persons, exam-

ines documentation of important decisions, and examines 

subsidiaries and other units. The Board of Auditors consists of 

all Company auditors and sets auditing policy, receives reports 

on the status of audits from auditors, receives reports on audits 

conducted as needed by accounting auditors, and increases 

mutual cooperation such as through the exchange of informa-

tion as required.

carried out as needed. Through this, Hogy Medical understands 

that sufficient corporate governance will function for subsidiar-

ies and sub-subsidiaries.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control 
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General Meeting of Shareholders

Company Divisions and Group Companies

Board of Auditors
1 standing auditor, 
2 outside auditorsBoard of Directors

5 directors, 2 outside directors

Directors, 
Executive Officers

Independent
Accounting Auditor 

Committee Over 
Internal Controls

Internal Auditing 
Department

Management 
meeting

Election and 
dismissal

Election and 
dismissal

Audit 
inspection

Audit 
inspection

Instruction and 
supervision

Instruction and 
supervision

Instruction and supervision

Internal control 

Report Report

Audit 
inspection

Audit 
accounting

Report

Election and 
dismissal

Basic Approach and Maintenance Status of Internal Control System

Hogy Medical has a system for ensuring the appropriate execu-

tion of business by clarifying the authority and responsibility 

of each duty, while also implementing appropriate division of 

business by incorporating a mutual check-and-balance system 

into the business process, and at the same time recognizes the 

necessity of conducting reviews and improving and strengthen-

ing controls in a timely manner. 

The Board of Directors has established the Committee 

Over Internal Controls to operate a system for ensuring that 

the execution of duties by directors complies with the law and 

the Articles of Incorporation (this committee is responsible for 

establishing a system for internal control, compliance and risk 

management, and for examining, improving, etc. this system; 

the same applies hereinafter). 

The Committee Over Internal Controls is chaired by the 

President of Hogy Medical, and an Internal Control Committee, 

which each hold a regular meeting once a month, have been set 

up under the Committee Over Internal Controls. All activities 

are reported to the Board of Directors.

17ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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2012  2013  2014  2015  2016
Years ended in March

2012  2013  2014  2015  2016
Years ended in March
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Net Sales
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Income Statement Data 
   Net sales
   Operating income
   Profit before income taxes
   Profit attributable to owners of parent
Balance Sheet Data
   Common stock
   Additional paid-in capital
   Total net assets
   Total liabilities and net assets
   Property, plant and equipment, net
 Cash Flow Data 
   Net cash provided by operating 
     activities
   Net cash used in investing activities
   Net cash (used in) provided by 
     financing activities
   Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
     year

Per Share Data
   Profit attributable to owners of parent:  
      Basic
      Diluted
   Net assets

Key Financial Data
   Capital expenditures
   Depreciation expenses 
   R&D expenses
   Equity ratio (%)
   Return on equity (%)
   Price/earnings ratio (times)
   Number of shares issued (thousands)
   Number of employees at year-end*

2016

35,233
8,505
8,678
5,659

7,123
8,336

83,301
102,944
44,845

7,935
(11,973)

(1,747)

22,661

359.81
—

5,295.72

11,791
2,708

508
80.91
7.13

16.40
16,341
1,586
(625)

2015

34,793
8,747
8,885
5,632

7,123
8,336

75,379
90,411
32,949

9,349
(1,798)

(1,684)

28,227

358.10
—

4,791.96

2,213
2,865

620
83.37
7.77

14.74
16,341
1,606
(569)

2014

33,094
8,113
8,353
5,247

7,123
8,336

69,602
78,279
28,430

6,495
(2,175)

(1,527)

22,105

333.61
—

4,424.56

2,068
2,971

542
88.91
7.86

15.38
16,341
1,620
(579)

2013

31,873
7,750
7,822
4,624

7,123
8,336

64,013
72,522
29,585

6,278
(2,810)

(2,310)

19,239

294.01
—

4,069.17

1,798
3,064

406
88.26
7.42

12.57
16,341
1,441
(516)

2012
(Millions of yen

unless indicated otherwise)
(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

Years ended March 31,

 Note: The U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from Japanese yen, for convenience only,   
            at the rate of ¥112.69 = U.S.$1.00, the rate of exchange on March 31, 2016.
          * The number of employees is the size of the employed population. The annual average number of employees             
            who are on fixed-term employment contracts with consolidated subsidiaries are indicated in parentheses.

(yen) (U.S. dollars)

(Millions of yen,
unless indicated otherwise)

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

36,568
8,784
8,743
5,910

7,123
8,336

87,610
99,963
49,742

6,809
(15,669)

(1,811)

11,993

375.81
—

5,569.77

15,784
3,376

403
87.64
6.92

16.07
16,341
1,521
(668)

324,505
77,953
77,592
52,454

63,211
73,973

777,445
887,062
441,411

60,423
(139,052)

(16,075)

106,426

3.33
—

49.43

140,066
29,958
3,576

—
—
—
—
—

Five-Year Financial Data Overview (Consolidated)



19ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Status of Business Operations
Overview of Business Performance

Business performance
In fiscal 2015 that ended in March 2016, the Japanese 
economy saw various economic measures implemented 
by the government and additional monetary arrangements 
conducted by the Bank of Japan, among other events. 
Nevertheless, in the face of such factors as a slowdown in 
overseas economies, lower crude oil prices and unstable 
movements in the stock market since the beginning of 2016, 
the prospect of the economy remained uncertain.

In the healthcare industry, healthcare reform is underway 
where functional differentiation is being strengthened for 
medical institutions in an effort to realize the future vision of 
healthcare and nursing care services for 2025 as described in 
the government’s Integrated Reform of Social Security and 
Tax System initiative. In accordance with this, companies in 
the medical equipment industry are required to make further 
progress in streamlining management in order to respond to 
the changing healthcare environment.

Under such an environment, the Hogy Medical Group 
focused on expanding sales of Opera Master, which supports 
management improvement of medical institutions, promoting 
sales of kit products to contracted medical institutions, and 
developing and selling new products. 

For Opera Master, the Company endeavored on 
marketing activities to advanced acute care hospitals and 
general acute care hospitals, which resulted in steady 
conclusion of new contracts totaling 40 cases. On the other 
hand, there were ten cases of contract cancellations, making 
the total number of contracts 272. Sales of kit products 
increased mainly for Opera Master, promoted by the 
Company’s efforts to enhance sales management to newly 
contracted medical institutions. Sales of non-woven fabric 
products decreased, however, partly because of the impact of 
measures taken to maintain profits against the rising cost of 
sales due to foreign exchange and other external factors. 

In terms of new products, the Company delivered 
the Surgery Management System, which contributes to 
enhanced efficiency of surgery room operations as well as the 
management reform of medical institutions, to three facilities. 
Moreover, the Company sold EMARO® Endoscope Holder, 
which realizes a high level of safety and excellent operability, 
to two facilities. Consequently, sales of new products 
increased year-on-year.

Other than the above, the Company has worked to 
review the specifications and sale methods of Premium Kit, 
a new offering of the kit products in pursuit of the maximum 
advantages for customers, in preparation for starting its 
test operations. Moreover, Hogy Medical has been engaged 
in constructing the new kit products plant as an important 
production facility key to the Company’s growth going 
forward. Construction of its buildings was completed in the 
second quarter of the fiscal year under review, and installation 
of interior machinery and facilities is being conducted at 
present.

As a result of these endeavors, consolidated net sales for 
the fiscal year increased 3.8% year-on-year to ¥36,568 million. 
Of this, sales of kit products amounted to ¥20,259 million (up 
7.3% from the previous year), including Opera Master-related 
sales of ¥13,721 million (up 9.9%), while sales of non-woven 
fabric products decreased 2.8% to ¥9,728 million. As for the 
cost of sales, the impact of foreign exchanges and an increase 
in depreciation expenses caused the cost of sales ratio to rise 
year-on-year. However, sales and general and administrative 
expenses were reduced from the previous fiscal year as the 
Company endeavored to use expenditures efficiently.

As a result, consolidated operating income increased 3.3% 
year-on-year to ¥8,784 million. Consolidated ordinary income 
was ¥8,924 million, up 1.8%, given the impact associated with 
fluctuations in exchange for loans to subsidiaries denominated 

in foreign currencies, among other factors. Profit attributable 
to owners of parent stood at ¥5,910 million, a year-on-year 
increase of 4.4%.

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year under 
review was ¥11,993 million, down ¥10,667 million from the 
previous fiscal year, due to the following cash flows:

(Cash Flows from Operating Activities)
In cash flows from operating activities there was recording 
of ¥8,743 million in income before income taxes and minority 
interests and ¥3,376 million in depreciation, a ¥688 million 
increase in notes and accounts receivable, a ¥1,192 million 
increase in accrued consumption taxes receivable in accordance 
with the acquisition of the building of the new kit production 
plant, and payment of ¥2,999 million in income taxes. As a 
result, cash flows was ¥6,809 million, a decrease of ¥1,126 from 
the previous fiscal year.

(Cash Flows from Investing Activities)
In cash flows from investing activities there was payment 
of ¥14,690 million for the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment associated with the construction of the new kit 
products plant and construction of machinery and equipment, 
among other factors. As a result, there was ¥15,669 million of 
expenditure, an increase of ¥3,696 million in expenditure from 
the previous fiscal year.

(Cash Flows from Financing Activities)
In cash flows from financing activities there was cash dividends 
paid, etc. As a result, there was ¥1,811 million of expenditure, 
an increase of ¥63 million in expenditure from the previous 
fiscal year. 

Financial Position

At the end of the consolidated fiscal year under review, total 
assets decreased ¥2,981 million from the end of the previous 
consolidated fiscal year to ¥99,963 million.

Current assets decreased ¥9,207 million to ¥33,655 
million due to such causes as the ¥10,652 million decrease 
of cash and bank deposits and the ¥688 million increase of 
notes and accounts receivable. Of fixed assets, property, 
plant and equipment increased ¥4,897 million to ¥49,742 
million due to the ¥14,356 million increase in buildings and 
structures in accordance with the building completion of the 
new kit products plant and to the ¥10,567 million decrease in 
construction in progress. Intangible assets was ¥3,241 million 
with an increase of ¥708 million. Investments and other assets 
increased ¥620 million to ¥13,323 million due to an increase in 
market value of investment securities, among other factors. As 
a result, fixed assets came to ¥66,307 million.

Total liabilities at the end of the consolidated fiscal year 
under review amounted to ¥12,352 million, a decrease of ¥7,289 
million compared to the end of the previous consolidated 
fiscal year. Current liabilities decreased ¥7,476 million to ¥9,143 
million due to such factors as the ¥4,945 million decrease in 
notes and accounts payable on the construction of the new kit 
products plant, which was the major cause of the decrease in 
total assets, and the ¥2,360 million decrease in accounts payable 
associated with the construction of the new kit products plant. 
Long-term liabilities was ¥3,209 million, having no major 
change year-on-year.

Net assets at the end of the consolidated fiscal year under 
review was ¥87,610 million, an increase of ¥4,308 million 
from the end of the previous consolidated fiscal year, due 
to such factors as an increase from the recording of ¥5,910 
million as profit attributable to owners of parent, the ¥1,037 
million increase in unrealized gain on other securities and the 
¥1,808 million decrease from cash dividends paid. As a result, 
the equity ratio rose from 80.9% at the end of the previous 
consolidated fiscal year to 87.6%.

Financial Review (Consolidated)
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Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

¥ 23,033
10,932
7,521

57
1,323

(5)
42,863

27,901
26,404
9,626

19,068
3,402

86,403
(41,558)
44,845

10,035
2,532
1,000

464
98

1,104
15,236

¥102,944

¥ 12,380
11,620
7,533

300
1,825

(5)
33,655

43,473
28,515
9,647
8,501
3,708

93,846
(44,103)
49,742

11,160
3,241
1,000

431
108
623

16,565

¥ 99,963

Assets
Current assets:
   Cash and bank deposits (Note 13)
   Notes and accounts receivable (Note 13)
   Inventories (Note 4)
   Deferred tax assets (Note 6)
   Other current assets
   Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
   Buildings and structures
   Machinery, equipment and vehicles
   Land
   Construction in progress
   Other

   Less: Accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

Investments and other assets:
   Investment securities (Note 13 and 14)
   Intangible assets
   Long-term time deposits
   Guarantee deposits
   Deferred tax assets (Note 6)
   Other assets
Total investments and other assets

Total assets

$ 109,863
103,120
66,853
2,662

16,200
(46)

298,653

385,780
253,042
85,613
75,438
32,909

832,784
(391,373)
441,411

99,039
28,762
8,873
3,825

966
5,529

146,997

$ 887,062 

(Millions of yen)

As of March 31,
2016 2015 2016

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

Consolidated Financial Statements
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¥ 4,980
1,291
1,265

736
868

9,143

2,467
252
61

427
3,209

7,123
8,336

68,438

(3,325)
80,571

6,267
72

780
(87)

7,031

6
87,610

¥99,963

$ 44,195
11,465
11,231
6,537
7,708

81,137

21,897
2,244

546
3,790

28,478

63,211
73,973

607,312

(29,513)
714,984

55,613
640

6,923
(776)

62,400

60
777,445

$887,062

¥  4,472
6,237
1,419
3,096
1,394

16,620

2,325
245
79

372
3,021

7,123
8,336

64,335

(3,323)
76,472

5,229
922
742
(70)

6,823

6
83,301

¥102,944

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
   Notes and accounts payable:
      Trade (Note 13) 
      Construction
   Income taxes payable 
   Accounts payable-other
   Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
   Deferred tax liabilities (Note 6)
   Liability for retirement benefits (Note 7)
   Long-term accounts payable – other
   Other long-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

Net assets:
   Shareholders’ equity:
      Common stock:
         Authorized —65,000,000 shares
         Issued         — 16,341,155 shares
      Additional paid-in capital (Note 5)
      Retained earnings (Note 5)
      Treasury stock, at cost (Note 10):
        612,767 shares in 2016 and 612,348 shares 
           in 2015
   Total shareholders’ equity

   Accumulated other comprehensive income:
      Unrealized gain on other securities 
      Deferred gain on hedges
      Translation adjustments
      Retirement benefit liability adjustments
   Total accumulated other comprehensive income
 
   Non-controlling interests
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

(Millions of yen)

As of March 31,
2016 2015 2016

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)
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Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

$324,505
168,469
156,036
78,082
77,953

109
650

(489)
340
595

(280)
(40)
—

(1,597)
349

(361)
77,592

24,896
240

25,137
52,454

(1)
$ 52,452 

¥35,233
17,855
17,378
8,872
8,505

11
62

115
46

(15)
—
(6)

(131)
—
89

172
8,678

3,086
(67)

3,019
5,659

(0)
¥ 5,659

¥36,568
18,984
17,583
8,799
8,784

12
73

(55)
38
67

(31)
(4)
—

(180)
39

(40)
8,743

2,805
27

2,832
5,911

(0)
¥ 5,910

Net sales 
Cost of sales (Note 4)
        Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 8)
        Operating income
Other income (expenses):
   Interest income
   Dividend income  
   Foreign exchange gain (loss), net
   Subsidy income
   Gain (loss) on investments in partnership
   Foreign value added taxes
   Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
   Loss from bad debt
   Loss on valuation of investment securities
   Other, net
Other income (expenses), net
        Profit before income taxes
Income taxes (Note 6):
   Current
   Deferred
Total income taxes
        Profit 
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 
        Profit attributable to owners of parent

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31,
2016 2015 2016

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

$52,454

9,205
(7,542)

335
(146)

1,851
$54,306

$54,304
 $     1

¥5,659

2,932
392
714
(29)

4,010
¥9,670

¥9,669
 ¥    0

Profit
Other comprehensive income:
   Unrealized gain on other securities
   Deferred gain on hedges
   Translation adjustments
   Retirement benefits liability adjustments
Total other comprehensive income (Note 9)
Comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
   Owners of parent
   Non-controlling interests

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31,
2016 2015 2016

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)

¥5,911

1,037
(849)

37
(16)
208

¥6,119

¥6,119
 ¥    0

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Unrealized 
gain on 
other 

securities

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

¥ 529
—

—
—
—

392
392
922
922
—

—
—
—

(849)
¥(849)
¥  72

Balance at April 1, 2014
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2015
Balance at April 1, 2015
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2016

¥ 27
—

—
—
—

714
714
742
742
—

—
—
—
37
37

¥780

¥2,813
—

—
—
—

4,010
4,010
6,823
6,823

—

—
—
—

208
208

¥7,031

¥2,297
—

—
—
—

2,932
2,932
5,229
5,229

—

—
—
—

1,037
1,037

¥6,267

¥6
—

—
—
—
0
0
6
6

—

—
—
—
0
0

¥6

(Millions of yen)

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 
income (loss)

Translation
adjustments

Deferred 
gain on 
hedges

Total
net assets

Non-
controlling 

interests

Accumulated other comprehensive income

¥7,123
—

—
—
—
—
—

7,123
7,123

—

—
—
—
—
—

¥7,123

Balance at April 1, 2014
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2015
Balance at April 1, 2015
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2016

¥8,336
—

—
—
—
—
—

8,336
8,336

—

—
—
—
—
—

¥8,336

¥60,422
(1,745)

5,659
—
(0)
—

3,913
64,335
64,335
(1,808)

5,910
—
—
—

4,102
¥68,438

16,341,155
—

—
—
—
—
—

16,341,155
16,341,155

—

—
—
—
—
—

16,341,155

¥(3,321)
—

—
(2)
0

—
(1)

(3,323)
(3,323)

—

—
(2)
—
—
(2)

¥(3,325)

(Millions of yen)

Retained 
earnings

Additional
paid-in
capitalAmount

Number of
shares 

Total
shareholders’ 

equity

Treasury
stock,
at cost

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock

Retirement 
benefit 
liability 

adjustments

¥(41)
—

—
—
—

(29)
(29)
(70)
(70)
—

—
—
—

(16)
(16)

¥(87)

¥72,560
(1,745)

5,659
(2)
0

—
3,911

76,472
76,472
(1,808)

5,910
(2)
—
—

4,099
¥80,571

¥75,379
(1,745)

5,659
(2)
0

4,010
7,922

83,301
83,301
(1,808)

5,910
(2)
—

208
4,308

¥87,610
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$63,211
—

—
—
—
—
—

$63,211

Balance at April 1, 2015
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2016

$73,973
—

—
—
—
—
—

$73,973

$570,911
(16,051)

52,452
—
—
—

36,401
$607,312

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 3)

Retained 
earnings

Additional
paid-in
capital

$(29,490)
—

—
(22)
—
—

(22)
$(29,513)

Total
shareholders’ 

equity

Treasury
stock,
at cost

Shareholders’ equity

Common 
stock

Unrealized 
gain on 
other 

securities

$ 8,183
—

—
—
—

(7,542)
(7,542)

$   640

Balance at April 1, 2015
 Cash dividends paid
 Profit attributable to 
      non-controlling interests 
 Purchases of treasury stock
 Disposal of treasury stock
    Other, net change
 Net changes during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2016

$6,587
—

—
—
—

335
335

$6,923

$60,549
—

—
—
—

1,851
1,851

$62,400

$46,408
—

—
—
—

9,205
9,205

$55,613

$58
—

—
—
—
1
1

$60

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 3)

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 
income (loss)

Translation
adjustments

Deferred 
gain on 
hedges

Total
net assets

Non-
controlling 

interests

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retirement 
benefit 
liability 

adjustments

$(630)
—

—
—
—

(146)
(146)

$(776)

$678,605
(16,051)

52,452
(22)
—
—

36,379
$714,984

$739,212
(16,051)

52,242
(22)
—

1,853
38,232

$777,445

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Operating activities
Profit before income taxes
     Depreciation
     Changes in liability for retirement benefits, net
     (Decrease) increase in allowance for doubtful accounts
     Interest and dividend income
     Gain (loss) on investments in partnership
     Foreign exchange loss (gain)
     Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment
     Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
     Loss on valuation of investment securities
     Changes in assets and liabilities:
        Notes and accounts receivable
        Inventories
        Notes and accounts payable
        Accrued consumption taxes and other
        Consumption taxes refund receivable and other
        Other current assets
        Other current liabilities
        Other investments
        Other liabilities
     Other
                      Subtotal
Interest and dividends received
Income taxes paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Increase in time deposits
Proceeds from time deposits
Purchases of investment securities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from distribution of investments in partnership
Payments for loans receivable
Collection of loans receivable
Decrease (increase) in other investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
Purchases of treasury stock
Cash dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 
  equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 11)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

¥  8,743
3,376

(11)
0

(85)
(67)
35
(4)
4

180

(688)
(45)
508

(533)
(1,192)

(66)
(530)
104

(2)
(1)

9,723
85

(2,999)
6,809

(26)
11

(60)
(14,690)

69
(1,094)

129
(0)
10

(17)
(15,669)

 —
(2)

(1,809)
(1,811)

4
(10,667)
22,661

¥ 11,993

$  77,592
29,959

(106)
3

(760)
(595)
311
(37)
40

1,597

(6,106)
(405)

4,509
(4,732)

(10,582)
(589)

(4,705)
928
(23)
(13)

86,282
761

(26,620)
60,423

(237)
102

(536)
(130,359)

616
(9,708)
1,148

(7)
89

(159)
(139,052)

—
(22)

(16,053)
(16,075)

38
(94,666)
201,092

$ 106,426

¥  8,678
2,708

(19)
(12)
(73)
15

(135)
(47)

6
—

(655)
561

(222)
428
—

(84)
331
(26)
36

(19)
11,468

73
(3,606)
7,935

(10)
7

(287)
(10,525)

92
(1,266)

7
(1)
13
(2)

(11,973)

0
(2)

(1,745)
(1,747)

219
(5,566)
28,227

¥ 22,661

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31,
2016 2015 2016

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

(Note 3)
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Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of presentation

Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) maintains 
its accounting records in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in Japan, and its 
overseas subsidiaries maintain its accounting records 
in conformity with that of its country of domicile. 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements 
are prepared on the basis of accounting principles 
generally accepted in Japan, which are different in 
certain respects as to the application and disclosure 
requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated 
financial statements prepared by the Company as 
required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange 
Law of Japan. For the purposes of this document, 
certain reclassifications have been made to present 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
in a format which is familiar to readers outside Japan. 
In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements include information which is not required 
under accounting principles generally accepted 
in Japan but is presented herein as additional 
information.

The consolidated subsidiaries of the Company 
are P.T. Hogy Indonesia and P.T. Hogy Medical Sales 
Indonesia.

(b) Basis of consolidation
In accordance with the accounting standard for 
consolidation, consolidated financial statements 
are required to include the accounts of the parent 
company and all its subsidiaries over which 
substantial control is exerted either through majority 
ownership of voting stock and/or by other means. 
As a result, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts of the Company 
and two consolidated subsidiaries for the years 
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015. There is no 
non-consolidated subsidiary or affiliated company 
accounted by equity-method. 

All significant intercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The subsidiaries are consolidated on the basis of 
a fiscal period ending on December 31, which differs 
from that of the Company; however, the necessary 
adjustments are made if the effect of this difference is 
material.

(c) Foreign currency translation
The revenue and expense accounts of the overseas 
consolidated subsidiaries are translated into yen at 
the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. 
The balance sheet accounts, except for the components 
of shareholders’ equity, are also translated into yen at 
the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. 
The components of shareholders’ equity are translated 
at their historical exchange rates. Differences arising 
from the translation are presented as translation 
adjustments and non-controlling interests in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Monetary assets and liabilities of the Company 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the current exchange rates in effect at each balance 
sheet date. All revenues and expenses denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of 
exchange prevailing when such transactions were 
made. The resulting exchange loss or gain is charged 
or credited as other expense or income.

(d) Cash equivalents
All highly liquid investments, with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased and which are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and 
are so close to maturity that they represent only an 
insignificant risk of any change in value attributable 
to changes in interest rates, are considered cash 
equivalents.

The definition of cash and cash equivalents in the 
consolidated statements of cash flows differs from that 
of cash and bank deposits in the consolidated balance 
sheets. Reconciliation between these is presented in 
Note 11.

(e) Securities
Securities other than those of the subsidiaries are 
classified as other securities. Marketable securities 
classified as other securities are carried at fair value 
with any changes in unrealized holding gain or loss, 
net of the applicable income taxes, included directly 
in net assets. Non-marketable securities classified as 
other securities are carried at cost. Cost of securities 
sold is determined by the moving average method.

Investments in limited partnerships and other 
similar investments (that are deemed to be securities 
in the Financial instruments and Exchange Act Article 
2-2) are accounted for using the equity method. 
Calculations are based on current financial statements, 
available as of the financial reporting date, which is 
stipulated in partnership agreements.

(f)  Derivative instrument and hedge accounting
Derivatives positions are stated at their respective 
fair market value. The Company utilizes forward 
foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and 
currency options to hedge forecasted foreign currency 
transactions and foreign currency accounts payable, 
related to its foreign purchase commitments.  

Deferral hedge accounting is adopted for 
derivatives which qualify as hedges, under which 
unrealized gain or loss is deferred. Forward foreign 
exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency 
options which meet certain hedging criteria are 
accounted for by the allocation method.

The Company uses derivatives to reduce their 
exposure to fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.

Since the substantial terms and conditions of 
the hedging instruments and the hedged items are 
the same, the Company considers that its hedge 
accounting is highly effective.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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(l) Retirement and severance benefits
Accrued retirement benefits for employees have 
been recorded at an amount calculated based on the 
retirement benefit obligation as of balance sheet data. 
The retirement benefit obligation for the employees is 
attributed to each period by the benefit formula method. 

Income taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements with respect to the 
differences between financial reporting and the tax bases 
of the assets and liabilities and are measured using the 
enacted tax rates and laws which will be in effect when 
the differences are expected to reverse.

(n) Consumption taxes
Transaction subject to consumption taxes are recorded 
at amounts exclusive of consumption taxes.

2.  Accounting Changes
The Company and consolidated subsidiaries adopted 
“Revised Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” 
(ASBJ Statement No. 21), “Revised Accounting Standard 
for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement 
No. 22), “Revised Accounting Standard for Business 
Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7) effective from April 1, 
2015. As a result, under these revised accounting standards, 
the presentation method of profit attributable to owners of 
parent was amended, the reference to “minority interests” 
was changed to “non-controlling interests.”

3.  U.S. Dollar Amounts
For the convenience of the readers, the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements with respect to the year 
ended March 31, 2016 have been presented in U.S. dollars 
by translating all yen amounts at ¥112.69 = U.S.$1.00, the 
exchange rate prevailing on March 31, 2016. This translation 
should not be construed as a representation that yen have 
been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted 
into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

4.  Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

(g) Inventories
Finished goods, work in process and raw materials 
are stated at cost determined by the average method. 
Merchandise is stated at cost determined by the 
moving average method. In case the profitability of 
the inventories has declined, the book value is reduced 
accordingly.

Supplies are stated at their most recent purchase 
prices.

(h) Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
(excluding lease assets) of the Company is principally 
calculated by the declining-balance method over 
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 
However, buildings (excluding accessory equipment) 
acquired by the Company after April 1, 1998 are 
depreciated by the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

Property, plant and equipment of consolidated 
subsidiaries are depreciated principally by the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the respective assets.

The principal estimated useful lives used for 
computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings and structures              3 to 50 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles   4 to 12 years

Intangible assets (excluding lease assets), including 
costs for computer software, are amortized by the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives 
(5 years).

Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized by the 
straight-line method.

(i) Allowance for doubtful accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided 
at an amount sufficient to cover possible losses on 
the collection of receivables. For the Company, the 
amount of the allowance is determined based on the 
historical rate of losses on receivables plus an estimate 
of the individual amounts deemed unrecoverable.

(j) Provision for employees’ bonuses
The provision for employees’ bonuses represents 
a provision for the future payment of employees’ 
bonuses. The amount at each balance sheet date is 
included in other current liabilities.

(k) Provision for directors’ bonuses
The provision for directors’ bonuses represents a 
provision for the future payment of directors’ 
bonuses. The amount at each balance sheet date is 
included in other current liabilities.   

(m)

The amount of inventories written down due to a 
decline in profitability for the year ended March 31, 2015 
was ¥142 million, which is included in cost of sales.

¥3,561
469

3,502
¥7,533

Merchandise and finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials and supplies

$31,608
4,163

31,080
$66,853

¥3,571
434

3,515
¥7,521

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of

U.S. dollars)
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7.  Retirement Benefit Plans
The Company has a defined contribution pension plan.

The overseas subsidiaries have a lump-sum 
retirement payment plan in accordance with the law in 
their countries of domicile.

The changes in the retirement benefit obligation 
during the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as 
follows:

¥    81
112

20
77
51

343

(43)
(43)

¥   300

¥    63  
 

18

153

10
9

12
105
373
(25)

347

—

(30)
(2,675)
(2,706)

¥(2,358)

Current:
Deferred tax assets: 
   Enterprise tax payable
   Provision for employees’ bonuses
   Social insurance premium on accrued  
     bonuses
   Unrealized gain on inventories
   Other
Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
   Deferred gain on hedges
Total deferred tax liabilities 
Deferred tax assets, net

Non-current:
Deferred tax assets: 
   Liability for retirement benefits
   Allowance for retirement benefits for 
     directors and corporate auditors
   Loss on valuation of investment 
     securities
   Asset retirement obligations   
     (Guarantee deposits)
   Loss on valuation of golf memberships
   Deferred loss on hedges
   Other
Total gross deferred tax assets 
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation   
  allowance

Deferred tax liabilities:
   Deferred gain on hedges
   Deferred gain on property and 
     equipment
   Unrealized gain or loss on securities 
Total deferred tax liabilities 
Deferred tax assets, net

$    724
1,001

179
685
455

3,045

(383)
(383)

$  2,662

$    561
    

163

1,365

94
86

106
939

3,317
(229)

3,087

—

(274)
(23,743)
(24,018)

$(20,930)

¥     97
136

23
51
52

361

(303)
(303)

¥     57

¥     61

25

105

11
10
—

155
369
(28)

341

(131)

(30)
(2,406)
(2,568)

¥(2,226)

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of

U.S. dollars)

6.  Income Taxes
Income taxes applicable to the Company comprise 
corporation tax, inhabitants’ taxes and enterprise tax 
which, in the aggregate, resulted in a statutory tax rate 
of approximately 32% for 2016 and 34% for 2015. Income 
taxes of the overseas consolidated subsidiaries are, in 
general, based on the tax rate applicable in their country 
of incorporation.

The major components of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Adjustment to deferred tax assets and liabilities due to 
change in the corporate tax rate
The “Act to partially revise the Income Tax Act and 
Others” (Act No. 15 of 2016) and the “Act to partially 
revise the Local Tax Act and Others” (Act No. 13 of 2016) 
were enacted on March 29, 2016. As a result, the effective 
statutory tax rate used to measure the Company’s 
deferred tax assets and liabilities was changed from 
31.51% to 30.15% and 29.92% for the temporary 
differences expected to be realized or settled in the year 
beginning April 1, 2016 and for the temporary difference 
expected to be realized or settled from April 1, 2018, 
respectively. The effect of the announced reduction of 
the effective statutory tax rate was to decrease deferred 
tax liabilities, after offsetting deferred tax assets, by ¥121 
million ($1,075 thousand) and increase deferred income 
tax expense by ¥22 million ($198 thousand), unrealized 
holding gain on securities by ¥142 million ($1,261 
thousand) and unrealized gain (loss) from hedging 
instruments by ¥1 million ($12 thousand) as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2016.

The following table sets forth the funded status of the 
plans and the amounts recognized in the consolidated 
balance sheets as of March 31, 2016 and 2015:

Balance at the beginning of the year
   Service cost
   Interest cost
   Actuarial gain or loss
   Retirement benefits paid
   Foreign exchange gains or losses
   Amount transferred to long-term   
     accounts payable due to termination  
     of lump-sum retirement payment  
     plan
Balance at the end of the year

¥210
33
18
30

(36)
22

(34)
¥245

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥245
48
19
12

(48)
(24)

—
¥252

$2,176
426
173
114

(430)
(215)

—
$2,244

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation
Net liability for retirement benefits in 
  the consolidated balance sheets

Liability for retirement benefits
Net liability for retirement benefits in 
  the consolidated balance sheets

¥245

¥245

¥245

¥245

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥252

¥252

¥252

¥252

$2,244

$2,244

$2,244

$2,244

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

5.  Shareholders’ Equity
The Corporation Law of Japan (the “Law”) provides that 
amounts from additional paid-in capital and retained 
earnings may be distributed to the shareholders at any 
time by resolution of the shareholders or by the Board 
of Directors if certain provisions are met subject to the 
extent of the applicable sources of such distributions. 
The Law further provides that amounts equal to 10% of 
such distributions be transferred to the capital reserve 
included in additional paid-in capital or the legal reserve 
included in retained earnings based on the applicable 
sources of such distributions until the sum of the capital 
reserve and the legal reserve equals 25% of the capital 
stock account.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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The components of retirement benefit expenses for 
the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Contributions made to defined contribution plans 
for the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 were ¥227 
million ($2,016 thousand) and ¥229 million.

The fair value of plan assets, by major category, as a 
percentage of total plan assets:

There is no related information to be disclosed for 
the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

The assumptions used in accounting for the above 
plans are as follows:

Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial 
  gain or loss
Retirement benefit expenses on the   
  defined benefit plan

¥33
18

2

¥54

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥48
19

—

¥67

$426
173

—

$599

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

Actuarial gain or loss
Total

¥39
¥39

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥19
¥19

$174
$174

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

Unrecognized actuarial gain or loss
Total

¥94
¥94

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥114
¥114

$1,014
$1,014

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

Discount rate 8.42%
20152016

8.53%

The components of retirement benefit liability 
adjustments included in other comprehensive income 
(before tax effect) for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 
2015 are as follows:

The components of retirement benefit liability 
adjustments included in accumulated other 
comprehensive income (before tax effect) as of March 
31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

8.  Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Major components of selling, general and administrative 
expenses for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 
were as follows:

Freight
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Salaries, wages and bonuses for  
  employees
Allowance for employees’ bonuses
Allowance for directors’ bonuses
Retirement and severance benefits
Depreciation

$ 8,395 
3

18,786
2,164

887
1,405
9,272

¥  923
—

2,216
275
100
153
951

¥  946
0

2,117
243
100
158

1,044

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

20152016 2016

9.  Other Comprehensive Income
The following table presents reclassifications adjustments 
and tax effects allocated to each component of other 
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016 
and 2015:

Unrealized gain on other securities:
   Amount arising during the year
   Reclassification adjustments for gains    
     and losses included in net income
   Amount before tax effect
   Tax effect
Unrealized gain on other securities

Deferred gain on hedges:
   Amount arising during the year
   Tax effect
Deferred gain on hedges

Translation adjustments:
   Amount arising during the year
   Tax effect
Translation adjustments

Retirement benefits liability adjustment:
   Amount arising during the year
   Reclassification adjustments for gains  
     and losses included in net income
   Amount before tax effect
   Tax effect
Retirement benefits liability adjustment
Total other comprehensive income

¥  4,112

—
4,112

(1,179)
2,932

545
(152)
392

714
—

714

(42)

2
(39)

9
(29)

¥  4,010

(Millions of yen)
20152016

¥  1,306

—
1,306
(269)

1,037

(1,253)
403

(849)

37
—
37

(19)

—
(19)

3
(16)

¥    208

$ 11,597

—
11,597
(2,392)
9,205

(11,126)
3,583

(7,542)

335
—

335

(174)

—
(174)

27
(146)

$  1,851

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2016

Research and development costs included in selling, 
general and administrative expenses and manufacturing 
costs for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 
amounted to ¥403 million ($3,577 thousand) and ¥508 
million, respectively.
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Dividends

Dividends paid

Meeting of the 
  Board of Directors
  on April 12, 2016 ¥29¥456

Common 
  stock

Dividends 
per share

Total 
dividendsResolution

Type of 
shares

(Yen)(Millions of yen)

March 31,  
  2016

Cut-off 
date

May 31, 
  2016

Effective 
date

Retained 
  earnings

Resources 
of 

dividends

Meeting of the 
  Board of Directors
  on April 12, 2016 $0.257$4,047

Common 
  stock

(U.S. dollars)(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

March 31,  
  2016

May 31, 
  2016

Retained 
  earnings

Dividends 
per shareResolution

Type of 
shares

Cut-off 
date

Effective 
date

Resources 
of 

dividends
Total 

dividends

Dividends of which the cut-off date was in the year 
ended March 31, 2016 and the effective date will be 
in the year ending March 31, 2017

Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on April 10, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on July 10, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on October 13, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on January 14, 2016 

$0.248

$0.257

$0.257

$0.257

$3,908

$4,047

$4,047

$4,047

Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock

(U.S. dollars)(Thousands of 
U.S. dollars)

March 31,  
  2015
June 30, 
  2015
September 30, 
  2015
December 31, 
  2015

May 29, 
  2015
August 31, 
  2015
November 30, 
  2015
February 29, 
  2016

Dividends 
per shareResolution

Type of 
shares

Cut-off 
date

Effective 
date

Total 
dividends

Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on April 10, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on July 10, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on October 13, 2015
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on January 14, 2016 

For the year ended March 31, 2016

¥28

¥29

¥29

¥29

¥440

¥456

¥456

¥456

Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock

(Yen)(Millions of yen)
March 31,  
  2015
June 30, 
  2015
September 30, 
  2015
December 31, 
  2015

May 29, 
  2015
August 31, 
  2015
November 30, 
  2015
February 29, 
  2016

Dividends 
per shareResolution

Type of 
shares

Cut-off 
date

Effective 
date

Total 
dividends 11.  Supplementary Cash Flow Information

The following table represents a reconciliation of cash 
and bank deposits in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 and cash 
and cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of cash flows for the years ended March 31, 
2016 and 2015:

Cash and bank deposits
Time deposits with original maturities  
  of more than three months
Cash and cash equivalents

(Millions of yen)

¥12,380

(387)
¥11,993

$109,863

(3,437)
$106,426

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

2015

¥23,033

(372)
¥22,661

2016 2016

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Note:
1. Increase due to purchase of fractional shares less than one trading unit.

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Shares issued:
    Common stock
Treasury stock:   
    Common stock  
      (Note 1)

Number of 
shares at 
March 31, 

2016
(Thousands of shares)

16,341

612

—

0

—

0

16,341

612

DecreaseIncreaseTypes of share

Number of 
shares at 
April 1, 

2015

10.  Net Assets
Information regarding changes in net assets for the 
years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Shares issued and outstanding/treasury stock(1)

(2)

(a)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

Meeting of the 
  Board of Directors
  on April 10, 2015 ¥28¥440

Common 
  stock

Dividends 
per share

Total 
dividendsResolution

Type of 
shares

(Yen)(Millions of yen)

March 31,  
  2015

Cut-off 
date

May 29, 
  2015

Effective 
date

Retained 
  earnings

Resources 
of 

dividends

Dividends of which the cut-off date was in the year ended 
March 31, 2015 and the effective date was in the year 
ending March 31, 2016

Note:
1. Increase due to purchase of fractional shares less than one trading unit.
2. Decrease due to sale of fractional shares less than one trading unit.

Shares issued:
    Common stock
Treasury stock:   
    Common stock  
      (Note 1, 2)

Number of 
shares at 
March 31, 

2015
(Thousands of shares)

16,341

612

—

0

—

0

16,341

612

DecreaseIncreaseTypes of share

Number of 
shares at 
April 1, 

2014

Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on April 10, 2014
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on July 10, 2014
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on October 10, 2014
Meeting of the Board of
  Directors on January 15, 2015 

¥27

¥28

¥28

¥28

¥424

¥440

¥440

¥440

Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock
Common 
  stock

(Yen)(Millions of yen)
March 31,  
  2014
June 30, 
  2014
September 30, 
  2014
December 31, 
  2014

May 30, 
  2014
August 29, 
  2014
November 28, 
  2014
February 27, 
  2015

Dividends 
per shareResolution

Type of 
shares

Cut-off 
date

Effective 
date

Total 
dividends

Consolidated Financial Statements
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(a)

(b)

12.  Amounts per Share
Basic profit attributable to owners of parent per share 
was computed based on the profit attributable to owners 
of parent available for distribution to shareholders of 
common stock and the weighted-average number of 
shares of common stock outstanding during the year, and 
diluted profit attributable to owners of parent per share 
was computed based on the profit attributable to owners 
of parent available for distribution to the shareholders and 
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during each year after giving effect to the 
dilutive potential of shares of common stock to be issued 
upon the exercise of warrants. Diluted profit attributable 
to owners of parent per share for the years ended March 
31, 2016 and 2015 has not been presented because there 
were no potentially dilutive securities as of March 31, 2016 
and 2015. Amounts per share of net assets were computed 
based on the net assets available for distribution to the 
shareholders and the number of shares of common stock 
outstanding at the year end.

Cash dividends per share represent the cash dividends 
declared as applicable to the respective years together 
with the interim distributions made.

13.  Financial Instruments

Overview

Policy for financial instruments

For the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the 
Company and its consolidated subsidiary (collectively, 
the Group) raises funds through short-time deposits, 
and in consideration of the future capital investment, 
the Group raises funds through long-term time 
deposits.

The Group uses derivatives for the purpose of 
reducing risk and does not enter into derivatives for 
speculative or trading purposes.

Types of financial instruments and related risk

Trade receivables – trade notes and accounts 
receivable – are exposed to credit risk in relation to 
customers.

Investment securities are exposed to market risk. 
Those securities are composed of mainly the shares 
of common stock of other companies with which the 
Company has business relationships.

Substantially all trade payables – trade notes and 
accounts payable – mostly have payment due dates 
within four months. Although the Company is exposed 
to foreign currency exchange risk arising from those 
payables denominated in foreign currencies, forward 
foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and 
currency options are arranged to reduce the risk.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(c)

(d)

Net assets $49.43¥5,295.72¥5,569.77

Profit attributable to owners    
   of parent:
    Basic
    Diluted
Cash dividends applicable to
   the  year

(yen)

¥375.81
—

116.00

$3.33
— 

1.03

(U.S. dollars)
2015

¥359.81
—

112.00

2016 2016

(yen) (U.S. dollars)
20152016 2016

Regarding derivatives, the Company enters into 
forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps 
and currency options to reduce the foreign currency 
exchange risk arising from the payables denominated 
in foreign currencies.

Information regarding the method of hedge 
accounting, hedging instruments and hedged items, 
hedging policy, and the assessment of the effectiveness 
of hedge accounting is found in Note 1 Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies (f) Derivative instrument 
and hedge accounting and Note 15 Derivative Transactions.

Risk management for financial instruments

Monitoring of credit risk (the risk that customers or 
counterparties may default)
In accordance with the internal policies of the 
Company for managing credit risk arising from 
receivables, each related division monitors credit 
worthiness of their main customers periodically, 
and monitors due dates and outstanding balances 
by individual customer. In addition, the Company 
is making efforts to identify and mitigate risks of 
bad debts from customers who are having financial 
difficulties.

The Group also believes that the credit risk of 
derivatives is insignificant as it enters into derivative 
transactions only with financial institutions which 
have a sound credit profile.  

Monitoring of market risks (the risks arising from 
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and others)
For trade payables denominated in foreign 
currencies, the Company identifies the foreign 
currency exchange risk for each currency on a 
monthly basis and enters into forward foreign 
exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency 
options to hedge such risk. 

For investment securities, the Company 
periodically reviews the fair values of such financial 
instruments and the financial position of the issuers.  

The administration department handles the  
execution and management of derivative transactions 
upon approval of the President and CEO.

Monitoring of liquidity risk (the risk that the 
Company may not be able to meet its obligations on 
scheduled due dates)
Based on the report from each division, the 
Company prepares and updates its cash flow plans 
on a timely basis to manage liquidity risk.

Supplementary explanation of the estimated fair value 
of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their 
quoted market price, if available. When there is no 
quoted market price available, fair value is reasonably 
estimated. Since various assumptions and factors 
are reflected in estimating the fair value, different 
assumptions and factors could result in different fair 
value. In addition, the notional amounts of derivatives 
in Note 15 Derivative Transactions are not necessarily 
indicative of the actual market risk involved in 
derivative transactions.
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*The value of assets and liabilities arising from derivatives is shown at net value,    
  and with the amount in parentheses representing net liability position.

Notes:
Methods to determine the estimated fair value of financial instruments and other 
matters related to securities and derivative transactions

Assets

Cash and bank deposits and notes and accounts receivable
Since these items are settled in a short period of time, their carrying value 
approximates fair value.

Investment securities
The fair value of stocks is based on quoted market prices. For information 
on securities classified by holding purpose, please refer to Note 14 Investment 
Securities of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Liabilities

Notes and accounts payable-trade and accounts payable-other
Since these items are settled in a short period of time, their carrying value 
approximates fair value.

Derivatives transactions
Please refer to Note 15 Derivative Transactions of the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements.

Financial instruments for which fair values are extremely difficult to determine

1.

2.

3.

(1)

(2)

¥ 95
¥297

Unlisted stocks
Investments in partnership

$  843
$2,642

¥275
¥272

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of

U.S. dollars)

Cash and bank deposits
Notes and accounts 
  receivable
Total

Due after 
ten years

(Millions of yen)
¥ —

 —
¥ —

¥ —

 —
¥ —

¥ —

—
¥ —

¥12,368 

11,620
¥23,988

Due after 
five years 
through 
ten years

Due after 
one year 
through 

five years

Due in 
one year 
or less

As of March 31, 2016

Cash and bank deposits
Notes and accounts   
  receivable
Total

Due after 
ten years

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)
$ —

 —
$ —

$ —

 —
$ —

$ —

—
$ —

$109,752 

103,120
$212,872

Due after 
five years 
through 
ten years

Due after 
one year 
through 

five years

Due in 
one year 
or less

As of March 31, 2016

¥12,380
11,620
10,768

¥34,769

¥ (4,980)
¥ (4,980)
¥    103

Assets:
1) Cash and bank deposits
2) Notes and accounts receivable
3) Investment securities
Total assets

Liabilities:
1) Notes and accounts 
       payable-trade
Total liabilities
Derivatives*

¥ —
—
—

¥ —

¥ —
¥ —
¥ —

¥12,380
11,620
10,768

¥34,769

¥ (4,980)
¥ (4,980)
¥    103

(Millions of yen)

Carrying 
value

Estimated 
fair value Difference

As of March 31, 2016

$109,863
103,120
95,554

$308,358

$  (44,195)
$  (44,195)
$    916

Assets:
1) Cash and bank deposits
2) Notes and accounts receivable
3) Investment securities
Total assets

Liabilities:
1) Notes and accounts 
       payable-trade
Total liabilities
Derivatives*

$ —
—
—

$ —

$ —
$ —
$ —

$109,863
103,120
95,554

$308,358

$  (44,195)
$  (44,195)
$    916

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying 
value

Estimated 
fair value Difference

As of March 31, 2016

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Carrying value of financial instruments on the 
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 
and estimated fair value are shown in the following table. 
The following table does not include financial instruments 
for which fair values are extremely difficult to determine 
(Please refer to Note 2 below).

Cash and bank deposits
Notes and accounts 
  receivable
Total

Due after 
ten years

(Millions of yen)
¥ —

 —
¥ —

¥ —

 —
¥ —

¥ —

—
¥ —

¥23,022 

10,932
¥33,954

Due after 
five years 
through 
ten years

Due after 
one year 
through 

five years

Due in 
one year 
or less

As of March 31, 2015

Because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult 
to determine the fair value, these financial instruments are not included in the 
preceding table.

Redemption schedule for receivables with maturities as of March 31, 2016 and 
2015

¥ 23,033
10,932
9,488

¥ 43,453

¥ (4,472)
(6,237)

¥(10,710)
¥   1,357

Assets:
1) Cash and bank deposits
2) Notes and accounts receivable
3) Investment securities
Total assets

Liabilities:
1) Notes and accounts 
       payable-trade
2) Accounts payable-other
Total liabilities
Derivatives*

¥ —
—
—

¥ —

¥ —
—

¥ —
¥ —

¥ 23,033
10,932
9,488

¥ 43,453

¥ (4,472)
(6,237)

¥(10,710)
¥   1,357

(Millions of yen)

Carrying 
value

Estimated 
fair value Difference

As of March 31, 2015

As of March 31,

Consolidated Financial Statements
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¥10,666
100

10,766

1
—
1

¥10,768

Securities whose carrying value  
  exceeds their acquisition cost:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal

Securities whose acquisition cost 
  exceeds their carrying value:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal
Total

¥8,894
—

8,894

(0)
—
(0)

¥8,894

¥1,771
100

1,871

1
—
1

¥1,873

(Millions of yen)

Carrying 
value

Acquisition 
cost

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

As of March 31, 2016

$94,650
887

95,537

16
—
16

$95,554

Securities whose carrying value  
  exceeds their acquisition cost:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal

Securities whose acquisition cost 
  exceeds their carrying value:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal
Total

$78,926
—

78,926

(0)
—
(0)

$78,926

$15,723
887

16,610

17
—
17

$16,628

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying 
value

Acquisition 
cost

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

As of March 31, 2016

14. Investment Securities
Information regarding securities classified as other 
securities

(a)
(a)

(b)

Currency-related transactions

¥2,302

¥  331

¥1,004

¥  232

¥  227

¥  201

Deferral hedge accounting
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:
          USD
 
Allocation method
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:
          USD (Note 2)

¥ (80)

¥ 68

¥116

—

—

—

¥1,141

—

—

—

—

—

(Millions of yen)

Total

Maturing 
after one 

year

As of March 31, 2016
Notional Amount Fair Value

Notes:
1. Calculation of fair value is based on the fair value, etc. presented by counterparty 
    financial institutions, etc.  
2. Allocation method are accounted for in combination with accounts payable that     
    are hedged and thus the fair value is included in the fair value of such accounts 
    payable.
3. Currency options, classified as zero cost options, are shown collectively since 
    call options and put options are part of the same contract.

Notes:
1. Calculation of fair value is based on the fair value, etc. presented by counterparty 
    financial institutions, etc.
2. Allocation method are accounted for in combination with accounts payable that 
    are hedged and thus the fair value is included in the fair value of such accounts 
    payable.
3. Currency options, classified as zero cost options, are shown collectively since         
    call options and put options are part of the same contract.

$20,429

$ 2,942

$ 8,913

$ 2,061

$ 2,015

$ 1,786

Deferral hedge accounting
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:  
          USD
 
Allocation method
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:
          USD (Note 2)

$ (717)

$  604

$1,030

—

—

—

$10,130

—

—

—

—

—

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Total

Maturing 
after one 

year

As of March 31, 2016
Notional Amount Fair Value

Impairment of investment securities

¥9,388
100

9,488

—
—
—

¥9,488

Securities whose carrying value  
  exceeds their acquisition cost:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal

Securities whose acquisition cost 
  exceeds their carrying value:
    Stocks
    Others
    Subtotal
Total

¥7,614
—

7,614

—
—
—

¥7,614

¥1,773
100

1,873

—
—
—

¥1,873

(Millions of yen)

Carrying 
value

Acquisition 
cost

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

As of March 31, 2015

Other securities
    Stocks

(Millions of yen)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

¥180 $1,597

(Thousands of
U.S. dollars)

15.  Derivative Transactions
The notional amounts and the estimated fair value of the 
derivative instruments outstanding as of March 31, 2016 
and 2015, for which hedge accounting has been applied, 
were as follows:
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(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Information by geographical areas

Net sales
This information has been omitted since 
overseas sales are less than 10% of net sales in the 
consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended March 31, 2016.

Property, plant and equipment
This information has been omitted since property, 
plant and equipment in Japan exceeds 90% of 
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated 
balance sheet as of March 31, 2016.

Information by major customers

This information has been omitted since there is no 
customer that represents more than 10% of net sales 
in the consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended March 31, 2016.

For the year ended March 31, 2015

Information by products and services

Information by geographical areas

Net sales
This information has been omitted since 
overseas sales are less than 10% of net sales in the 
consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended March 31, 2015.

Property, plant and equipment
This information has been omitted since property, 
plant and equipment in Japan exceeds 90% of 
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated 
balance sheet as of March 31, 2015.

Information by major customers

This information has been omitted since there is no 
customer that represents more than 10% of net sales 
in the consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended March 31, 2015.

17.  Related Party Transactions
The information about transactions with related parties 
has been omitted since there were no significant related 
party transactions for the years ended March 31, 2016 
and 2015. 

18.   Subsequent Events
The information about subsequent events has been 
omitted since there were no significant subsequent 
events for the year ended March 31, 2016.

(a)

16.  Segment Information

Segment information

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are 
engaged principally in manufacturing and selling 
nonwoven fabric and sterilized medical goods, which are 
considered to be a single business segment. Accordingly, 
the presentation of information by the reportable 
segments has been omitted.

Related information

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Information by products and services

Sales to third parties

Steriliza-
tion 

products

Surgical-
use 

products

$282,784

Medical 
treatment 
products

$1,837

Others

$7,514

Total

$324,505

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

$32,369

Sales to third parties

Steriliza-
tion 

products

Surgical-
use 

products

¥31,866

Medical 
treatment 
products

¥207

Others

¥846

Total

¥36,568

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

¥3,647

Sales to third parties

Steriliza-
tion 

products

Surgical-
use 

products

¥30,516

Medical 
treatment 
products

¥219

Others

¥887

Total

¥35,233

Year ended March 31, 2015

(Millions of yen)

¥3,609

¥3,806

¥2,894

¥2,310

¥  135

¥  307

¥  118

Deferral hedge accounting
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:
          USD
 
Allocation method
  Forward foreign exchange contracts,     
    accounted for as part of accounts 
    payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency swaps, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Buy:
          USD (Note 2)
  Currency options, accounted for  
    as part of accounts payable:
      Call options, Buy • Put options,  
        Sell:
          USD (Note 2)

¥ 72

¥879

¥405

—

—

—

¥2,534

¥  558

¥1,205

—

—

—

(Millions of yen)

Total

Maturing 
after one 

year

As of March 31, 2015
Notional Amount Fair Value

Notes:
1. Calculation of fair value is based on the fair value, etc. presented by counterparty 
    financial institutions, etc.  
2. Allocation method are accounted for in combination with accounts payable that     
    are hedged and thus the fair value is included in the fair value of such accounts 
    payable.
3. Currency options, classified as zero cost options, are shown collectively since 
    call options and put options are part of the same contract.

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Hogy Medical Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and 
its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2016, 
and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in net assets, and cash 
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing 
and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial statements is 
not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but in making these 
risk assessments the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Hogy Medical Co., Ltd. and its consolidated 
subsidiaries as at March 31, 2016, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars, 
presented for the convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements have been properly translated on the basis described in Note 3.

June 24, 2016
Tokyo, Japan
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 Sapporo Sales Office
1-1, Higashi 19-chome, Kita 26-jo, 
Higashi-ku, Sapporo-shi, Hokkaido 065-0026
Phone: +(81)11-783-2401  Fax: +(81)11-783-2460

Morioka Sales Office
14-50, Mitake 4-chome, Morioka-shi, 
Iwate 020-0122
Phone: +(81)19-641-1221  Fax: +(81)19-641-1383

 Sendai Sales Office
1, Okadanishimachi 3-chome, 
Miyagino-ku, Sendai-shi, Miyagi 983-0004
Phone: +(81)22-287-5333  Fax: +(81)22-287-5335

 Utsunomiya Sales Office
13-46, Futaba 1-chome, Utsunomiya-shi, 
Tochigi 321-0164
Phone: +(81)28-684-1715  Fax: +(81)28-658-6164

 Omiya Sales Office
14F, 10-16, Sakuragi-cho 1-chome, Omiya-ku, 
Saitama-shi, Saitama 330-0854
Phone: +(81)48-788-3230  Fax: +(81)48-788-3232

 Chiba Sales Office
12-12, Tsuga 2-chome, Wakaba-ku, 
Chiba-shi, Chiba 264-0025
Phone: +(81)43-232-1411  Fax: +(81)43-232-1285

 Tokyo Sales Office
20-9, Hongo 3-chome, Bunkyo-ku, 
Tokyo 113-0033
Phone: +(81)3-3813-8141  Fax: +(81)3-3813-8140

 Tama Sales Office
49-16, Tokura 4-chome, 
Kokubunji-shi, Tokyo 185-0003
Phone: +(81)42-320-5511  Fax: +(81)42-320-5513

 Yokohama Sales Office
482-1, Toriyama-cho, Kohoku-ku, 
Yokohama-shi, Kanagawa 222-0035
Phone: +(81)45-471-7701  Fax: +(81)45-471-7704

 Niigata Sales Office
9-3, Bentenbashi-dori 3-chome, Chuo-ku 
Niigata-shi, Niigata 950-0925
Phone: +(81)25-287-7110  Fax: +(81)25-287-7116

 Kanazawa Sales Office
1-16-22, Ekinishi-shinmachi, 
Kanazawa-shi, Ishikawa 920-0027
Phone: +(81)76-223-2351  Fax: +(81)76-223-5505

 Shizuoka Sales Office
241 Mise, Suruga-ku, Shizuoka-shi, 
Shizuoka 422-8057
Phone: +(81)54-284-6688  Fax: +(81)54-284-6855

 Matsumoto Sales Office
2-10-7, Muraimachi-minami, 
Matsumoto-shi, Nagano 399-0036
Phone: +(81)263-85-3280  Fax: +(81)263-86-7847

 Nagoya Sales Office
1-508, Bunkyodai, Meito-ku, 
Nagoya-shi, Aichi 465-0012
Phone: +(81)52-778-2711  Fax: +(81)52-778-2720

 Kyoto Sales Office
69, Takedanishidangawara-cho, Fushimi-ku,
Kyoto-shi, Kyoto 612-8429
Phone: +(81)75-606-l411  Fax: +(81)75-606-1499

 Osaka Sales Office
13F, 1-1, Edobori 2-chome, 
Nishi-ku, Osaka-shi, Osaka 550-0002
Phone: +(81)6-6445-8655  Fax: +(81)6-6445-8670

 Kobe Sales Office
2-15, Ekimae-dori, 2-chome, 
Hyogo-ku, Kobe-shi, Hyogo 652-0898
Phone: +(81)78-579-8611  Fax: +(81)78-579-8612

 Okayama Sales Office
6-28, Okudanishimachi, Kita-ku,
Okayama-shi, Okayama 700-0931
Phone: +(81)86-803-2007  Fax: +(81)86-803-2005

 Hiroshima Sales Office
17-23, Nakasuji 2-chome, Asaminami-ku, 
Hiroshima-shi, Hiroshima 731-0122
Phone: +(81)82-879-3901  Fax: +(81)82-879-3903

 Matsuyama Sales Office
1188-1, Kishimachi, Matsuyama-shi, 
Ehime 791-1102
Phone: +(81)89-976-2021  Fax: +(81)89-976-1822

 Fukuoka Sales Office
22-22, Toko 2-chome, Hakata-ku, 
Fukuoka-shi, Fukuoka 812-0008
Phone: +(81)92-475-1861  Fax: +(81)92-475-1864

 Kumamoto Sales Office
107-12 Koga, Mashikimachi, 
Kamimashiki-gun, Kumamoto 861-2234
Phone: +(81)96-286-1331  Fax: +(81)96-286-1425

 Kagoshima Sales Office
3-1, Gionnosu-cho, Kagoshima-shi,
Kagoshima 892-0803  
Phone: +(81)99-248-5040  Fax: +(81)99-247-2330

   Sales Offices

(as of July 1, 2016)Network
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 Tsukuba Plant 
1650-30, Okubara-cho, Ushiku-shi, Ibaraki 300-1283

 Kit Plant
 Phone: +(81)29-830-9700  Fax: +(81)29-830-9710

 Sterilization Center
 Phone: +(81)29-830-9725  Fax: +(81)29-830-9726

 Distribution Center
 Phone: +(81)29-830-9100  Fax: +(81)29-830-9101

 OPC
 Phone: +(81)29-830-9735  Fax: +(81)29-830-9736

 Miho Plant No.1
1873-1 Fusa, Miho-mura,  Inashiki-gun, 
Ibaraki 300-0427       
Phone: +(81)29-885-2981  Fax: +(81)29-885-6800

 Miho Plant No.2
1776-1 Fusa, Miho-mura,  Inashiki-gun, 
Ibaraki 300-0427       
Phone: +(81)29-885-6611  Fax: +(81)29-885-6800

 Edosaki Distribution Center
2726-1, Tatenodai, Sakura, 
Inashiki-shi, Ibaraki 300-0508
Phone: +(81)29-892-2381  Fax: +(81)29-892-0891

 Edosaki Sterilization Center
2726-1, Tatenodai, Sakura, 
Inashiki-shi, Ibaraki 300-0508
Phone: +(81)29-892-5300  Fax: +(81)29-892-5221

    Facilities

P.T. Hogy Indonesia            
MM2100 Industrial Town, EPZ., 
Block M-3-1, Cikarang Barat, 
Bekasi 17520, West Java, Indonesia

P.T. Hogy Medical Sales Indonesia                 
Jl. Dr. Saharjo No. 45 Blok A 57,
Kelurahan Manggaral, Kecamatan Tebet,
Jakarta Selatan 12850, Indonesia

   Overseas Subsidiaries
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Jun-ichi Hoki

Katsumi Uchida

Yukio Yamamoto

Kiyoshi Uesugi

Naoki Matsumoto
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Katsuo Sasaki

Shuji Yanase

Takuya Kobayashi
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Jun-ichi Hoki

Takuya Kobayashi

Naoki Matsumoto
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Yukikazu Mishima Noboru Iizuka Shuji Yanase

Katsuo Sasaki

Yukio Yamamoto

President & CEO                       
Jun-ichi Hoki
Executive Director                     
Yukio Yamamoto   (Sales Div. / Sales Dept. 4)

Directors                                        
Naoki Matsumoto   (Sales Dept. 3) 
Katsuo Sasaki   (Production Div. / Indonesia Dept.) 
Takuya Kobayashi  (Sales Dept. 1)

Outside Board Member            
Katsumi Uchida
Kiyoshi Uesugi
Full-time Corporate Auditor   
Yukikazu Mishima
Outside Corporate Auditors    
Shuji Yanase                 
Noboru Iizuka

Executive Officers                      
Ikuo Fuse                (Sales Administration Dept.) 
                                (Systems Administration Dept./
                                     Administration Dept.)
Akira Koizumi        (General Manager Production Div.)
Wataru Fujimoto     (Sales Dept. 2) 

                                (as of June 24, 2016)

Board of Directors, Corporate Auditors
and Executive Officers

Corporate Data

Incorporated:
April 3, 1961

Paid-in capital:
¥7,123 million

Number of employees:
1,521 (Consolidated)

Number of sales offices:
23

Listing:
The Tokyo Stock Exchange 
First Section

Code number:
3593

Number of shareholders:
5,122

Shares of common stock issued 
and outstanding:
16,341,155

Financial year:
April 1 to March 31

Annual general meeting:
June

Transfer agent:
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
Corporate Agency Division
10-11 Higashisuna 7-chome, Koto-ku, 
Tokyo, 137-8081
Tel: 0120-232-711

Independent auditor:
Ernst & Young ShinNihon
Hibiya Kokusai Building, 2-3, 
Uchisaiwai-cho 2-chome,  Chiyoda-ku,  
Tokyo 100-0011
Tel: 03-3503-1100
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Corporate Information
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High (yen)
Low (yen)

2012 20142013 2015 2016

Number of 
shareholders Number of shares

Number of shares Percentage of total
(%)

4,749,878
2,706,220

152,470
6,660,554
2,072,033

16,341,155

29.07
16.56

0.93
40.76
12.68

100.00

Unique to Japan, the “box-and-
whisker” chart shows monthly price 
 movements  and  turnover.  A  single
 box contains opening, closing, high
 and  low  quotations  on  a  monthly
 basis  which  enables  the  reader  to
 quickly see price movements

If the box is white, it means that 
the closing price of the month is 
higher than the opening price and if 
the box is blue, the opposite has 
occurred. The box also changes 
shape. If the opening quotation is 
the same as the low for the month 
and the closing quotation is the 
same as the high for the month, a 
whisker does not appear from the 
white box. These are but two 
examples of this excellent charting 
method.

Numbers shown in the chart 
represent the highest and the 
lowest prices throughout the period. 
A bar graph at the foot of the chart 
indicates the monthly turnover in 
units of one million shares.

● Masao Hoki
● Goldman Sachs and Company Regular Account 
   (Permanent representative: Goldman Sachs Securities Co., Ltd. )
● Hoki Museum Co., Ltd.
● State Street Bank and Trust Company 
   (Permanent representative: The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 
   Corporation Limited Tokyo Branch)
● Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 9)
● Northern Trust Company (AVFC) Mondrian International Small Cap 
   Equity Fund (Permanent representative: The Hongkong and 
   Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited Tokyo Branch)
● Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account)
● Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Pension Fund Trust)
● State Street Bank and Trust Client Omnibus Account OM02 505002 
   (Permanent representative: Mizuho Bank, Ltd., 
   Settlement & Clearing Services Division)
● Jun-ichi Hoki

2,673,023

1,062,450

767,724

717,100

467,800

450,000

332,400
325,400

321,000

293,750

16.35

6.50

4.69

4.38

2.86

2.75

2.30
1.99

1.96

1.79

Individuals
Financial institutions
Financial products trading firms
Foreign investors and others
Others
Total

4,816
33
27

181
65

5,122

Our company owns 612,767 treasury stock.
(As of March 31,  2016)

Proportion
(%)

Years ended in March
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(upper whisker)

Opening
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Closing
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(lower whisker)

Lowest
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